FREEDIVING

HANDB00





FREEDIVING HANDBOOK











ABOUT THIS HANDBOOK

This guide originated from the desire to share the experience of breath-hold diving to expand the love for ecology, seas, rivers, and the environment in general. The sea and the underwater world are often mysterious but exceptionally important parts of our planet. This guide is not intended only for experienced divers but also for those who may have never dived, including people with disabilities or challenges and children.

We want to show you that diving is not reserved only for the chosen few, but that anyone can become a skilled diver and fall in love with the magical underwater world. At the same time, we aim to raise awareness about preserving our environment. The sea, river, or lake are not just places for entertainment; they are habitats for numerous plant and animal species that depend on the preservation of their environment.

This guide will provide you with useful information about diving, underwater safety, equipment, and techniques that will help you enjoy this experience regardless of your previous experience or any physical challenges. Additionally, we will guide you on how to act responsibly towards the environment during diving, as every small act of kindness towards nature can make a significant difference.

Let this guide be an inspiration for all generations to connect with nature and become ambassadors for its preservation. There is no better way to understand the importance of environmental conservation than through personal experience and falling in love with its beauty underwater.









TABLE OF CONTENTS

1. Freediving

- Basic Information about Freediving and the Importance of Inclusive Approach
- Key Aspects of the Inclusive Approach
- 2. Freediving Disciplines
- 3. Ecology and Freediving
- 4. First Aid in Freediving
- 5. Preparation
 - Physical Preparation of Divers with Disabilities
 - Psychological Preparation of Children and Persons with Disabilities
- 6. Benefits of Freediving for Persons with Disabilities
- 7. Equipment
 - Adaptation of Freediving Equipment for Persons with Disabilities
- 8. Qualified Instructors
- 9. Training for Freediving for Individuals with Disabilities
- **10.** Certificates and Recognitions Adapted for People with Disabilities
- 11. Experiences of Divers with Disabilities
- 12. Different Types of Disabilities and Challenges
- 13. Freediving techniques
 - Basic freediving techniques









• Freediving techniques adapted for children and individuals with disabilities

14. Communication

- The Importance of Underwater Communication
- The use of signs or communication aids

15. Inclusivity and Diversity

• Promoting an Inclusive Environment and Diversity

16. Activities and Games

- Underwater Activities for Children and Individuals with Disabilities
- Various Games Promoting the Development of Diving Skills

Conclusion













INTRODUCTION

Diving without a tank, also known as freediving, represents a unique and thrilling activity based on an individual's ability to hold their breath and dive into the depths of the ocean or other bodies of water. Although it might initially seem like a sport reserved only for selected professionals, freediving has the potential to become accessible to everyone. The fundamental idea at the heart of this text is to emphasize the importance of an inclusive approach to freediving, enabling different individuals, regardless of their physical or other personal characteristics, to enjoy the wonders of this sport.





Who are we?

Ronilački klub "Roniti se mora":

The diving club "Roniti se mora" represents a fusion of passion for diving, ecology, and shared adventures. Our motto, "Just Relax," reflects our relaxed and friendly atmosphere that guides us during all our gatherings and diving experiences.

Established in 2011, our club brings together young and ambitious divers who are entirely different from others. Natural optimists, we share a common passion for diving and the underwater world, exploring the depths of the sea together and creating unforgettable moments. However, what makes us unique is our deep commitment to ecology and love for underwater photography.

In addition to diving, we often organize ecological actions to contribute to the preservation of our beautiful underwater world. Almost every weekend we spend









on the coast, whether domestic or foreign, to explore the diversity of marine ecosystems and educate ourselves about their importance.

Furthermore, we regularly conduct diving courses and train new divers, sharing our knowledge and passion for the underwater world with them. Our mission is to raise awareness about the importance of preserving the sea and the underwater environment.

We take pride in our diving projects, "Think Green" and "Underwater Photo Marathon." "Think Green" is our initiative focused on ecological activities, while the "Underwater Photo Marathon" is our annual event dedicated to underwater photography. We proudly point out that we are currently holding a world champion position in underwater photography, a result of our passion and dedication to this artistic expression. Also, in our club, we are pet-friendly because we believe that pets contribute to even greater fellowship and joy that we share.

Together, we dive, explore, travel and make a difference in preserving our beautiful underwater world. One must dive because the underwater world is waiting for us to explore and preserve it for future generations.











1. FREEDIVING

Basic Information about Freediving and the Importance of Inclusive Approach:

Freediving is an activity in which a person submerges underwater and holds their breath without using diving equipment, such as compressed air tanks. This activity can be a sport, recreational, or professional, requiring specific skills, including breath control, balance, and underwater safety. Freediving is a diving technique that involves breath-holding during descent. Freedivers utilize skills such as breathing, relaxation, and body control.

Freediving provides people with the opportunity to explore the underwater world in a simple and natural way.

The importance of an inclusive approach to freediving lies in enabling all individuals, regardless of their physical abilities, mental health, or other specific needs, to participate in this activity.

Key Aspects of an Inclusive Approach

<u>Accessible Equipment:</u> It is necessary to develop equipment that is accessible to individuals with disabilities or other specific needs. This includes special masks, fins, and other gear that enables diving for people with various needs.

<u>Training and Certification:</u> Diving instructors should be educated to work with individuals of different abilities and needs. Organizations offer specialized training for instructors to ensure adequate support and training for all participants.







<u>Mental Health</u>: An inclusive approach to freediving should also take mental health into account. Individuals facing anxiety or other mental challenges may have specific needs that should be considered.

Education and Awareness: Promoting inclusive access to freediving in the broader community helps raise awareness about the importance of including everyone in this activity. This may involve campaigns, training, and information dissemination about inclusivity.

Incorporating different groups of people into freediving not only expands the number of people who can enjoy this beautiful experience but also promotes diversity, tolerance, and understanding among individuals. Inclusivity is key to creating a diving community that is open to all, regardless of their differences.

2. FREEDIVING DISCIPLINES

Freediving encompasses various disciplines, with some of the most renowned freediving disciplines being:

Static Apnea (STA): The diver holds their breath for as long as possible with the respiratory organs submerged, either with the body submerged in the water or at the water's surface. Static apnea is the only discipline based on breath-holding time rather than distance. Performances can take place in both pool and open water environments (sea, lake, river, etc.).

Dynamic Apnea Without Fins (DNF): The diver travels horizontally underwater, attempting to cover the greatest distance possible using a modified breaststroke. Any propulsion aids are prohibited. DNF requires excellent









technique, relaxation, and prolonged breath-holding to achieve maximum distance.

Dynamic Apnea With Fins (DYN): This is the most common pool discipline where the diver swims horizontally underwater, aiming to cover the greatest possible distance. Propulsion aids, except for fins or a monofin, and swimming movements with the arms are not allowed. Performances can be recognized in pools with a minimum length of 25 meters.

Free Immersion (FIM): The diver descends and ascends without using propulsion equipment (fins) but uses a central line for pulling to submerge and emerge. This discipline, known for its relaxation aspect, allows the diver to fully control the descent and ascent speed, making it suitable for learning equalization techniques.

Constant Weight (CWT): The diver descends and ascends using a monofin. Pulling the rope or changing the weight will result in disqualification; only one grip on the rope for turning and starting the ascent is allowed. CWT is the most widespread and recognized competitive deep freediving discipline due to the specific fins or monofin used.

No Limits (NLT): This extreme discipline involves the diver descending with the aid of weights and ascending by a method of their choice. No Limits is the deepest depth discipline, where the diver descends with a sled and ascends with a balloon, diving suit, buoyancy vest with inflation pockets, or any other means.

<u>Constant Weight No Fins (CNF)</u>: The diver descends and ascends using a variation of breaststroke without the use of propulsion equipment and without pulling a rope. CNF is the most challenging competitive deep freediving discipline, requiring the highest strength as the diver is without fins.









Dynamic with Bi-Fins (DYNB): A relatively new discipline allowing the diver to use Bi-fins (stereo/2 fins) in a pool, attempting to cover the greatest possible distance. Only bi-fins are allowed for propulsion.

Constant Weight with Bi-Fins (CWTB): A new discipline that enables the diver to descend and ascend while attempting to reach a target depth by swimming with Bi-fins (stereo/2 fins). Only bi-fins are allowed for propulsion.

Variable Weight (VWT): The diver descends with the aid of weights and ascends using their own power, either pulling or not pulling a rope. Variable Weight is one of the two deep disciplines that utilize a sled for descent. Initially, diving was done "headfirst," but new-generation sleds allow "feet first" facilitating easier equalization. VWT is attempted only for records and is not a competitive discipline.

3. ECOLOGY AND FREEDIVING

Freediving is an ancient skill that connects us to the mysterious world of the oceans, while ecology is the science that explores these deep waters and preserves their natural beauty and diversity. This combination offers a unique opportunity for understanding and conserving the marine environment, as described by numerous writers and researchers throughout history.

Ecology examines the relationships between organisms and their environment. When we discuss the ecology of freediving, we consider the impact of this activity on the marine ecosystem. Freediving can be incredibly beneficial in promoting awareness of the need to preserve the underwater world. Freedivers often become enthusiasts of the oceans and seas, becoming advocates for marine conservation. Their first-hand experience of the beauty and vulnerability of the underwater









realm often inspires them to take action to protect the oceans from various threats, such as pollution, overfishing, and climate change.

However, freediving can also have a negative impact on the ecosystem if not conducted responsibly. Improper practices, such as touching or damaging coral, collecting shells, or fishing beyond quotas, can seriously disrupt the balance of the marine environment. Therefore, it is essential for all freedivers to educate themselves about the rules and ethics of freediving and to respect local laws and regulations.

Additionally, freediving requires special attention to one's own health and safety. Diving at depths reduces access to oxygen, so developing good breathing techniques and diving skills is necessary to reduce the risk of injuries or accidents. This also involves taking care of one's body and preventing injuries to the lungs and ears, which can result from underwater pressure.

Ecology and freediving are inseparably linked. Freediving allows us to connect with nature in a unique way and become ambassadors for the protection of the underwater world. However, it also carries the responsibility to preserve and protect this fragile environment for future generations to enjoy. By studying, educating ourselves, and practicing sustainable freediving, we can collectively contribute to the preservation of our beautiful oceans and marine ecosystems. Today, as we freedive, we must remember the words of Aldous Huxley from his book "Island": "We are not separate from nature, we are a part of it." Our ecological responsibility to the marine world must be the foundation of our freediving experiences. Through education and awareness, we can become stewards of the underwater realm, striving to preserve its beauty for future generations.











4. FIRST AID IN FREEDIVING

Here is some useful information about first aid in freediving:

<u>Consciousness Check:</u> If you notice that your freediving partner is unconscious or not behaving normally, try to bring them to consciousness immediately. Gently shake them and call their name.

Assistance in Swimming to the Surface: If you observe that a person is having difficulty breathing or swimming, assist them in swiftly and controlled swimming to the surface. Pay attention to signs of panic.

Assistance in Unconsciousness: If a person becomes unconscious underwater, it is crucial to react quickly. First, bring them towards the surface, then remove them from the water. If necessary, begin resuscitation.









Oxygen: If you have access to oxygen equipment, use it to provide oxygen to someone experiencing breathing difficulties.

<u>Assistance with Injuries:</u> If a person has injuries, such as sea urchin stings or cuts, stop the bleeding, disinfect the wound, and cover it with a sterile dressing.

<u>Call Emergency Services:</u> In the case of serious injuries or if a person remains unconscious, immediately call emergency services and inform them of the situation. Stay calm and provide accurate information about the location.

<u>After Rescue:</u> After administering first aid, ensure that the person receives further medical attention if necessary. Monitor their condition and be prepared for further first aid procedures.

It is important to note that every freediver should have basic knowledge of first aid, and freediving should be practiced with care and following safety rules to reduce the risk of injuries and accidents.

5. PREPARATION

Physical preparation of divers with disabilities

Diving is an extraordinary way to explore the depths of seas and oceans, allowing us to connect with the fascinating underwater world. However, this experience is not limited to individuals without disabilities. Thanks to the development of special equipment and training programs, people with disabilities can also enjoy diving.

Physical preparation of divers with disabilities is a key component of this process. Before embarking on underwater adventures, divers with disabilities must pay









special attention to their physical preparation to ensure a safe and enjoyable diving experience.

Firstly, it is important to emphasize that there is no universal formula for the physical preparation of divers with disabilities, as it may vary depending on the type of disability. However, there are several key aspects to consider:

<u>Health Assessment:</u> Before starting diving, every person with a disability should consult with a physician to determine their physical ability for this activity. The doctor will be able to provide recommendations and guidelines for a safe approach to diving.

<u>Selection of Appropriate Equipment:</u> Divers with disabilities must choose suitable diving equipment that allows them to compensate for their disability. There are special adaptations and aids available on the market that facilitate diving for individuals with different disabilities.

<u>Training and Exercises:</u> After ensuring appropriate equipment, training follows. This includes exercises to improve strength, endurance, and balance to ensure stability during diving. Training also focuses on breathing and swimming techniques underwater.

Instruction and Accompaniment: Individuals with disabilities should approach instructors specialized in diving with people with disabilities. These instructors will provide the necessary training and support throughout the learning process.

<u>Safety First:</u> Safety is always paramount. Individuals with disabilities should be aware of their physical limitations and follow diving rules to avoid potential dangers.

Physical preparation for divers with disabilities may require extra effort and expert support, but it offers the opportunity for extraordinary underwater









experiences. With proper planning, training, and support, individuals with disabilities can enjoy the wonders of the underwater world and feel as free as fish in the water.



Psychological Preparation of Children and Persons with Disabilities

Education and Information: The first and most important phase of preparation is education. It is necessary to educate children and persons with disabilities about freediving itself, the equipment that will be used, safety measures, and rules. Proper information helps reduce fear and anxiety, enabling participants to better understand what to expect.

<u>Discussion of Expectations:</u> Before starting freediving, it is important to discuss participants' expectations and goals. Setting realistic goals and understanding what they can achieve helps create a positive mental framework.









<u>Boosting Confidence</u>: Many individuals, especially children and persons with disabilities, may feel insecurity or fear before freediving. It is necessary to work on strengthening their confidence and belief in their abilities. Achieving new depths and pushing their own limits in freediving can significantly contribute to boosting the confidence of persons with disabilities. Praise, support, and gradual exposure to these situations can help achieve this goal.

<u>Relaxation Techniques:</u> Learning relaxation techniques such as deep breathing and meditation can help manage anxiety and stress that may be present before freediving. These techniques can help ensure a calm mind and relaxed body.

<u>Proper Equipment and Instructors:</u> It is important to ensure that all equipment is properly adapted, and instructors are trained to work with children and persons with disabilities. This ensures safety and trust in the freediving process.

<u>Family and Friends Support</u>: Family and friends play a crucial role in psychological preparation. Their support and encouragement can be of great importance to individuals preparing for freediving.

<u>Gradual Exposure:</u> Gradual progression is crucial. Start with shallow waters and simple tasks to allow participants to gradually acclimate to freediving. Gradually increase depth and complexity to make individuals feel secure.

<u>Social Interaction</u>: Ensure that individuals have the opportunity to interact with other freedivers. Social support and connection with like-minded individuals can help reduce feelings of isolation and create a positive experience.

Psychological preparation for freediving for children and persons with disabilities requires attention, patience, and empathy. It is crucial to ensure they feel safe and supported throughout the entire process. When properly prepared, these









participants can experience incredible moments underwater and develop a lasting love for freediving.

6. <u>BENEFITS OF FREEDIVING FOR PERSONS WITH</u> <u>DISABILITIES</u>

- 1. Physical Benefits: Freediving provides extraordinary physical benefits, including improved lung function, muscle strengthening, and increased overall physical endurance.
- 2. Mental Health: This discipline promotes concentration, quiets the mind, and encourages relaxation. This can be especially beneficial for persons with disabilities who are dealing with stress or other mental challenges.
- **3. Confidence:** Achieving new depths and extending personal limits in freediving can significantly contribute to boosting the confidence of persons with disabilities.
- **4. Community:** Freediving can create a shared experience for persons with disabilities and their diving partners, promoting a sense of community and connection.



Europska komisiia









7. <u>EQUIPMENT</u>

Adaptations for Freediving for Persons with Disabilities

Freediving for persons with disabilities requires specific adaptations and safety protocols to ensure maximum safety during diving experiences. Through careful planning and training, it is ensured that freediving is accessible and safe for everyone. Here are some key safety aspects:

Special freediving masks and snorkels: These masks are designed to provide a comfortable fit and good visibility, even for individuals with special needs. Ophthalmologically designed masks enable better underwater vision and provide protection and stability.

<u>Safety belts and aids</u>: The use of additional safety belts and aids to ensure stability and safety during diving.

Assistive swimming aids: Persons with disabilities can use various assistive swimming devices to maintain balance and control underwater. These may include fins adapted to their needs or special swimming devices.

<u>Water access</u>: Adaptations for water access, such as the use of ramps or lifts, to facilitate entry and exit from the water for individuals with limited mobility.

Communication systems: The use of specialized communication systems for communication between divers and instructors, especially for individuals with auditory or speech difficulties.







8. QUALIFIED INSTRUCTORS

- **1. Specialized instructor training:** Instructors working with individuals with disabilities should undergo additional training to understand the specific needs of different disabilities.
- 2. Individual approach: Customizing instructions and approaches to the individual needs of each participant, taking into account different types of disabilities.
- **3. Emergency situation planning:** Developing specific emergency plans tailored to the needs of individuals with disabilities to ensure prompt and effective assistance in case of an accident.
- **4. Providing support during and after diving:** Ensuring emotional support and follow-up after diving to ensure the well-being of participants, especially after their initial experiences.

Safety in freediving for individuals with disabilities requires an integrated and holistic approach to ensure an enjoyable diving experience with maximum safety.











9. TRAINING FOR FREEDIVING FOR INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES

Training for freediving for individuals with disabilities should be adapted to ensure that each participant understands the basics of freediving, safety aspects, and the use of adapted equipment. Specialized training programs ensure that instructors have the necessary skills to work with different disabilities. Here are a few key elements of such programs:

- 1. Individual Approach: Customizing the training program according to the specific needs of each participant, taking into account different types of disabilities.
- 2. Understanding Limitations: Instructors are educated about the specifics of various disabilities to better understand the challenges participants may face.
- **3. Breathing Techniques and General Skills:** Focus on developing breathing techniques and general skills crucial for freediving, tailored to the needs of participants.
- **4. Safety Protocols:** Detailed training on safety protocols adapted for individuals with disabilities, including procedures for emergencies.
- **5. Familiarization with Adapted Equipment:** Thorough acquaintance with adapted freediving equipment to ensure participants' safety and independence during diving.
- **6. Communication with Participants:** Developing communication skills tailored to different means of communication for participants, including speech, sign language, or written communication.









10. <u>CERTIFICATES AND RECOGNITIONS ADAPTED FOR</u> <u>PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES</u>

1. Certificates Adapted for Various Disabilities:

Issuing certificates that indicate the adaptations present during training to facilitate the identification of specific skills and knowledge acquired by participants.

2. Achievements Recognition:

Special recognitions or awards for the achievements of participants with disabilities, serving as an incentive for them to take pride in their success.

3. Accessibility of Certificates:

Ensuring the accessibility and clarity of certificates for individuals with various types of disabilities, including visual and auditory challenges.

4. Further Development Opportunities:

Encouraging participants with disabilities to pursue further development and participate in specific courses or workshops that support their expertise.

5. Certification of Instructors for Working with People with Disabilities: Special certificates for instructors who have undergone training to work with people with disabilities, ensuring a high level of expertise in inclusive diving.

6. Progress Reports:

Monitoring and reporting on the progress of participants during the course, providing information on achievements and challenges. Training and certification tailored to individuals with disabilities are crucial elements in building trust and promoting safety and enjoyment during freediving.









11. EXPERIENCES OF DIVERS WITH DISABILITIES

Incorporating personal stories of divers with disabilities into the promotion of freediving has a powerful impact on the community, fostering inspiration, camaraderie, and understanding. Here are a few experiences of divers with disabilities:

1. Motoric challenges:

Someone with cerebral palsy shares their experience of how freediving has adapted to their overall mobility, improving their independence underwater.

2. Challenges of Individuals with Limited Mobility:

Someone using a wheelchair shares their journey from the first encounter with freediving to making progress in underwater movement with adapted assistive devices.

3. Challenges of Individuals with Visual Impairment:

Someone who is blind describes their experience of feeling freedom and connection with the underwater environment, using tactile and auditory signals during freediving.

4. Experiences of Individuals with Hearing Impairments:

A person with hearing loss shares how they developed a communication system with instructors and fellow divers, enabling full participation in freediving.

5. Stories of Overcoming Mental Challenges:

Those facing anxiety share how freediving has helped them confront challenges, providing them with peace and tranquillity underwater.









12. DIFFERENT TYPES OF DISABILITIES AND CHALLENGES

1. Motoric Challenges:

Limited mobility and body control can pose challenges in dressing and using diving equipment.

2. Limited Mobility:

Individuals using wheelchairs or facing reduced facial mobility encounter challenges entering and exiting the water, as well as moving underwater.

3. Visual Impairment:

Limited perception of the environment can be a challenge in underwater orientation, requiring additional communication and safety methods.

4. Hearing Impairments:

Lack of auditory ability may necessitate innovative approaches to communication and safety signals during diving.

5. Mental Challenges:

Individuals dealing with mental challenges, such as anxiety, may experience freediving as a means of relaxation and confronting personal fears.

Incorporating diverse experiences of divers with disabilities helps create an inclusive diving community and emphasizes the value and possibilities of diving for everyone.







13.FREEDIVING TECHNIQUES



Basic freediving techniques

Proper Breathing: Before going underwater, it's important to adopt proper breathing. Inhale deeply through your nose and exhale through your mouth. Repeat this cycle several times to relax and prepare for the dive.

<u>Relaxation</u>: It's crucial to be completely relaxed before submerging. Tension in the muscles can deplete oxygen more quickly, so take deep breaths and release tension.

Descent: Descend slowly and quietly underwater. Be cautious not to make sudden movements that could increase oxygen consumption.









Buoyancy and Swimming: Maintaining balance and swimming in place with minimal movement helps conserve oxygen. Use your hands and legs to stay stable.

<u>Repeat Breathing Cycle:</u> While underwater, repeat the cycle of deep inhalation and slow exhalation. Try to reduce the number of breaths as much as possible to extend the time you can spend underwater.

<u>**Time Awareness:**</u> Always be mindful of how much time you've spent underwater. Use a watch or dive computer to track how long you can hold your breath.

Ascent: When you feel you're running out of breath or reach your limit, slowly swim to the surface. Be careful not to surface too quickly to avoid the risk of barotrauma or decompression sickness.

Safety: Never freedive alone. Always have a buddy or dive partner who can assist if any issues arise.

Training: To improve your freediving skills, practice regularly and gradually push your limits. Pay attention to your body and stop diving if you feel discomfort or signs of excessive exertion.

<u>Proper Nutrition:</u> Drinking plenty of water and consuming oxygen-rich foods such as fruits and vegetables can enhance your endurance while freediving.







Freediving techniques adapted for children and individuals with disabilities

Adapted Snorkelling: If a person is unable to dive deep, snorkelling can be an excellent alternative. Adjust the equipment to suit their needs and ensure they have a good snorkel (breathing tube on the water's surface) and a well-fitting mask.

Floating Devices: The use of floating devices such as buoyancy belts or comfortable suits with specific flotation properties can help individuals with disabilities stay on the water's surface and feel more secure.

Adapted Diving Equipment: There are special diving products and equipment tailored to individuals with disabilities. For example, there are diving masks with special sealing parts that allow for a better fit on the face.

Diving with Instructor Support: Individuals with disabilities or children can dive with the support of an instructor specialized in diving with special needs. These instructors are trained to work with different disabilities and know how to adjust techniques and equipment for each individual.

Mental Preparation: Before freediving, it is important for the person to feel relaxed and prepared. Relaxation and meditation techniques can help reduce stress and anxiety.

Communication: In case a person has difficulty communicating or needs additional support, discuss with the instructor about underwater communication methods, such as using sign language or special communication equipment.







Safety: Safety is crucial. Ensure that the person is well-versed in basic diving rules, such as breath control, descent, and ascent. Also, always ensure the presence of someone who can assist if needed.

Hands-on Training: Gradually introduce the individual to freediving and allow them to gradually acclimate to the underwater environment. Start with surface swimming before attempting deeper dives.

Customizations as Needed: Techniques and adaptations will vary depending on the type of disability or the needs of the child, so it's important to consult with someone who is an expert in adapted diving training.









14. COMMUNICATION

The Importance of Underwater Communication

Underwater communication plays a crucial role in the world of diving for many reasons. Whether it's recreational diving, exploratory missions, or professional diving, effective communication brings numerous advantages and can be a matter of safety and the success of a diving expedition.

Here are several important reasons why underwater communication is essential:

Safety: Communication allows divers to quickly share information about their condition, needs, or potential hazards. This way, members of the diving group can assist each other and react faster to unforeseen situations, such as equipment loss or breathing issues.

Coordination: In group diving, effective communication is crucial for coordinating activities. Divers need to be able to agree on diving paths, depth, time spent underwater, and other aspects to avoid misunderstandings and conflicts during the dive.

Education and Guidance: Dive instructors use communication to convey knowledge and experience to new divers. Instructions on diving techniques, hazards, or local conditions are essential for training and safe progression.

Research and Scientific Expeditions: For scientific diving expeditions, communication is critical for task coordination, data collection, and reporting results. Without communication, such projects would be significantly more challenging.

Rescue and Emergency Situations: In case of emergencies or the need for rescue, communication allows divers to quickly call for help or provide information that facilitates the rescue.









<u>Warning of Hazards:</u> Divers may sometimes face hazards such as weather changes, currents, or encounters with dangerous marine life. Communication can serve as a warning mechanism for the entire group of divers.

The use of signs or communication aids

The use of signs or communication aids plays a crucial role in ensuring safety and effective communication among divers underwater. These signs allow divers to express their needs, communicate with partners or instructors, and alert to potential dangers or issues during the dive. Here are several key signs and communication aids used in diving:

OK Sign: Divers often use the OK sign to confirm that everything is fine. The fingers are formed into a circle, while the other fingers extend upward. This sign indicates that everything is okay, and there are no problems.

Going Up Underwater: To suggest to a partner or group that you need to ascend or go toward the surface, raising the thumb upward or raising the entire hand is used.

Going Down Underwater: To signal a descent to greater depth, the diving community uses lowering the thumb downward or pressing the palm downward.







<u>Stop:</u> To stop an action or draw attention, the stop sign can be used, where one hand is placed in front of the other, and the fingers overlap.

Breathing Problems: If a diver is experiencing breathing difficulties, the sign for this situation is used. One hand crosses over the chest, and the other points toward the mouth, indicating the need for air.

Danger or Problems: To alert to danger or problems, the diver can use the danger sign - spreading the fingers or pointing toward the problematic situation.

15. INCLUSIVITY AND DIVERSITY

Promoting an Inclusive Environment and Diversity

Diving is one of the most fascinating and fulfilling sports that allows us to explore the magical world beneath the water's surface. However, to truly enjoy this activity and maximize its benefits, it is important to create an inclusive environment and encourage diversity among divers.

Inclusive environment in diving means that everyone, regardless of age, gender, race, religion, sexual orientation, or physical abilities, has the opportunity to participate in diving. This is important not only for promoting justice and equality but also for enriching the experience of all divers. Promoting inclusivity and diversity in diving will not only enhance the diving community but also enable individuals to enjoy this beautiful sport regardless of their personal characteristics or limitations.







16.ACTIVITIES AND GAMES

Underwater Activities for Children and Individuals with Disabilities

Free Diving: This activity is suitable for all ages and ability levels. Children and individuals with disabilities can swim or dive with the help of fins and diving masks. It can be an excellent opportunity to explore the underwater world and become acquainted with marine life.

Snorkelling: Snorkelling is a lighter version of diving where a person uses a diving mask and a breathing tube on the water's surface. This is particularly suitable for children and individuals who may not be able to dive deeper.

Diving with Buoys: This is a great activity for individuals with disabilities who use wheelchairs. Special buoys are used to enable floating on the water's surface while the person with a disability can observe the underwater world.

Underwater Therapy: For individuals with disabilities, diving and aquatic therapies can be extremely beneficial. Diving therapists can provide expert assistance and tailor activities to achieve therapeutic goals.

Dolphin Diving: In some destinations, there are specialized programs for diving with dolphins. This experience can be highly emotional and beneficial for children and individuals with disabilities.

Sensory Diving: This activity involves using various sensory aids and toys to enhance the diving experience for individuals with special needs.









Before engaging in any of these activities, it is important to consult with a medical professional and a diving instructor to ensure that the safety and needs of individuals with disabilities are fully met. Depending on the type of disability, it may be necessary to adapt equipment and techniques to ensure safety and enjoyment in the activity.



Various Games Promoting the Development of Diving Skills

Underwater Soccer: This game involves a ball that players try to pass from one to another at the bottom of the pool or sea. Players use scuba masks and fins to move and maintain balance while playing.

Trampoline Jumping: Placing trampolines on the water and jumping from them can help develop coordination and balance when entering and exiting the water.







Hunting Game: One player can be the "hunter," while the other players must hide objects at the bottom of the pool. The hunter then has to dive and find these objects using only their mask and fins.

<u>Racing Games:</u> Set up a track at the bottom of the pool and organize diving races. This will encourage speed and endurance underwater.

Ball Games: Using different types of balls, such as beach balls or water balls, can be fun and beneficial for developing diving skills. Players can try to pass or shoot the ball underwater.

Underwater Orientation: Set markers or tracks at the bottom of the pool or sea and organize an underwater orientation game. Players must use their compasses and diving skills to find the markers.

Diving Fitness: Organize a diving fitness challenge where players must perform various exercises underwater, such as swimming in different styles or demonstrating endurance.

Underwater Exploration: Encourage players to explore the underwater environment, learning about different types of marine life and rocks. This will enhance their ability to recognize and navigate underwater.

Diving with a Camera: If players have underwater cameras or GoPro devices, encourage them to dive and take photos or record the underwater world. This will develop their technical skills and creativity underwater.

Diving Games for Children: For younger divers, games like underwater treasure hunting or breath-holding races can be fun and educational.







CONCLUSION

Freediving is a captivating and demanding sport that offers numerous physical and mental benefits. Integrating children, including those with challenges, or individuals with disabilities into the process and education of freediving unveils new possibilities and provides a wealth of advantages.

Freediving can be both accessible and beneficial for individuals of all ages, including children. Children engaging in freediving can foster the development of confidence, motor skills, and emotional stability. Additionally, this experience can deepen their understanding of environmental conservation and the marine world.

For children with challenges or individuals with disabilities, freediving can be an especially transformative experience. It provides a sense of freedom and weightlessness within reach, irrespective of surface-level barriers. Through customized programs and support, these individuals can partake in activities that might otherwise be out of reach. It is crucial to underscore that ensuring professionally trained instructors, appropriate equipment, and safety measures are essential for the inclusion of children and individuals with disabilities in freediving. Furthermore, families, schools, and communities should rally behind such initiatives to create an inclusive environment, enabling everyone to revel in the wonders of the underwater realm.

In essence, freediving can be an exceptionally enriching experience for children and individuals with challenges or disabilities, fostering confidence, collaboration, and a love for nature. This inclusive practice holds the potential to transform lives and unlock new opportunities for all those who choose to plunge into the enchanting world beneath the waves.









Funded by the European Union. Views and opinions expressed are however those of the author(s) only and do not necessarily reflect those of the European Union or the European Education and Culture Executive Agency (EACEA). Neither the European Union nor EACEA can be held responsible for them.









